
 
Board of Directors Meeting 

View online at: https://youtube.com/live/sBy7JmcYWck?feature=share 

September 25, 2025 
9:30 a.m. 

Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Board Members 
 
Shelley Heller 
Chair 
 
Sean L. Coleman, Esq. 
Secretary 
 
Brendon Baatz  
Treasurer 
 
Moalie Jose, P.E. 
Chair, Audit Committee 
 
James H. Johnson Jr., 
Ph.D., P.E. 
Chair, HR Committee 
 
Odessa L. Phillip, P.E. 
 
Rebecca L. Flora, AICP 
Secretary, Department 
of Planning 
 
Charles C. Glass, Ph.D., 
P.E. 
Executive Director 
 
Delegate Dylan A. Behler 
 
 
 

 

Call to Order Shelley Heller 

Inspire Awards Managing Directors 

Approval of Minutes – August 21, 2025 Shelley Heller 

Executive Director’s Report Charles Glass 
 
2025 Employee Engagement Survey Tasks Jeff Tosi 
 
FY28-32 Strategic Plan Workplan Jeff Tosi 

FY25 BEST Results Sandy Hertz 

New Business Report Managing Directors 

Financial Report Hament Patel 
• Resolution 25-09-1R – American Indian Heritage Day  

 
Human Resources Report  Felicia Gross 
 
Procurement Winsome Condra 
Procurement Items 
• Item 1: MPA Dredged Material Management Program Engineering & 

Environmental Services – Gahagan & Bryant Associates, Inc. 
• Item 2: Montgomery County Recycling Center Temporary Labor – Colossal 

Contractors, Inc. 
• Item 3: Brown Station Road Landfill Area C Infill Quality Assurance 

Services – SCS Engineers, Inc. 
 

Procurement Notifications 
  
Legal Report Priscilla Carroll 

• Board Bylaws Update   
• Public Comment Procedures 
• Regulatory Review – Evaluation Report 

 

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutube.com%2Flive%2FsBy7JmcYWck%3Ffeature%3Dshare&data=05%7C02%7Cpfuller%40menv.com%7C842f7d524b394a1581e308dde16bb7bd%7C4c44e1cf7dae454fa18fc18a6a12f9d7%7C0%7C0%7C638914574946832917%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gOo4SoxgQQj60s2rJKo6qzNb3ZV7nc5S3WdlKmU8FEs%3D&reserved=0


Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
September 25, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

 
Group Updates  

• Tri-Con Technical Sessions, Competition & Awards  Jen Wijetunga 
• St. Mary’s County Stormwater Project  Melissa Slatnick  
• Midshore Regional Recycling Program  Tim Ford 
• MPA Innovative Reuse & Beneficial Use of Dredged   Kenna Oseroff 

            Material Program    

Old/New Business  Shelley Heller 
 

Adjournment  Shelley Heller 
 
 

 



 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE 

 RESOLUTION 

 25-09-1R 

 

A RESOLUTION  

 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE MARYLAND 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE (“SERVICE”) TO CLOSE CERTAIN OFFICES 
AND FACILITIES OF THE SERVICE ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 28, 2025, IN 
OBSERVATION OF AMERICAN INDIAN HERITAGE DAY; AUTHORIZING 
MAKING AMERICAN INDIAN HERITAGE DAY A PERMANENT HOLIDAY OF 
THE SERVICE; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING CERTAIN PAYMENTS TO 
EMPLOYEES OF THE SERVICE. 

 

 R  E  C  I  T  A  L  S 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to §3-103.1(b)(4) of the Natural Resources Article, 

Annotated Code of Maryland, the Service may determine the terms of employment of its 

employees, including compensation, benefits, holiday schedules, and leave policies; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the employees of the Service are dedicated, resourceful and hard-

working; and 

   

  WHEREAS, the day after Thanksgiving has been designated a State Holiday since 

2008 to observe American Indian Heritage Day; and 

 

  WHEREAS, by law, the offices of State agencies will be closed on Friday, 

November 28, 2025, in observation of American Indian Heritage Day. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE THAT: 

 

1. The Executive Director may close the offices and facilities of the Service on Friday, 



Resolution No. 25-09-1R 
Authorization to Close MES Offices 
Page 2 
 
 

 

  

November 28, 2025, except for those offices and facilities which the Service is obligated by 

law or agreement to operate and have open for business on that day. 

2. The Executive Director shall close the offices and facilities of the Service on the day after 

Thanksgiving each year in observation of American Indian Heritage Day, except for those 

offices and facilities which the Service is obligated by law or agreement to operate and have 

open for business on that day. 

3. All employees of the Service shall be granted paid leave on American Indian Heritage Day, 

in the same manner as if that day were a Holiday under COMAR 14.27.02.15.A. 

 
 
 ADOPTED, this 25th day of September 2025. 
 
 
 
SEAL                         MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE 
 
 
 
                               BY: ________________________________ 
                                   SHELLEY HELLER   
   CHAIR 
 
 
 
                               BY: ________________________________ 
                                    SEAN L. COLEMAN  
   SECRETARY 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

Change Order/Renewal Approval 
PROCUREMENTS, CONTRACTS, PURCHASE ORDERS,  

AMENDMENTS, AND CHANGE ORDERS 
FOR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL 
September 25, 2025 

 
Item: 1  

Type: A/E Services over $200,000 

Group & Division: Environmental Dredging and Restoration 

MES Contract Number: 1-23-5-17-8 

Project Name: Various Maryland Port Administrations (MPA) Projects 

Title/Description: Engineering and Environmental Services in Support of MPA 
Dredged Material Management Program (DMMP) Activities & 
Projects  

Original Procurement Method:  Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Contractor: Gahagan & Bryant Associates, Inc. 

Original Term: May 4, 2023 – May 4, 2027 

Modifications to Date: Renewal #1: Option Year 1 (May 4, 2027 – May 4, 2029) 

New Term: Option Year 2 – May 4, 2029 – May 4, 2031 

Original Amount: $6,000,000 (BOD Item 3, 10/20/2022) 

Modifications to Date: Renewal #1 $2,000,000 (BOD Item 3, 11/21/24 

Amount of this Renewal #2:  $2,000,000 

Revised Total Contract Amount: $10,000,000 

Client/Fund Source: Maryland Port Administration: 07-07-13: Masonville DMCF 
Construction MOU; 2-19-3-24: Mid-Bay Project Design MOU,  

 and other MOUs as tasks are identified. 
 
MBE Participation: 29%. MBE goal attainment to date is 41.41%. 

Remarks: There is one additional, optional, two-year/up to $2 million 
extension for the contract. The options may be added at MES’ 
discretion and pending BOD approval. 

 

 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

Masonville Dredged Material Containment Facility 

 
 

Mid-Bay Island Ecosystem Restoration Project – Barren Island 

 
 

Mid-Bay Island Ecosystem Restoration Project – James Island 

 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

Change Order/Renewal Approval 

PROCUREMENTS, CONTRACTS, PURCHASE ORDERS,  
AMENDMENTS, AND CHANGE ORDERS 

FOR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL 

 
September 25, 2025  

 

Item: 2  

Type: Services over $200,000 

Group & Division: Environmental Operations  

MES Contract Number: 1-22-4-13-5 

Project Name: Montgomery County Recycling Center – General & Skilled Labor 
Services 

Title/Description: Provide labor to the Montgomery County Recycling Center in 
Derwood, MD. 

Original Procurement Method:  Competitive Sealed Bid 

Contractor: Colossal Contractors, Inc.  

Original Term: 11/30/2021 to 11/30/2022 (12 months with an option to renew for four 
additional one-year terms) 

Modified Term: 01/01/2026 to 12/31/2026 (fourth of four additional one-year renewals) 

Original Amount: $2,335,185.60 (BOD Item 3, 8/26/2021 pre-approved for $2,752,000) 

Modifications to Date: Renewal #1 – $2,488,328.80 (BOD Item 3, 12/5/2022) 
      (first of four additional one-year renewals – 12/1/22 – 12/31/2023) 

Renewal #2 – $2,640,080.40 (BOD Item 2, 7/17/2023) 
      (second of four additional one-year renewals 1/1/2024-12/31/2024) 

C.O. #1 – $1,651,431.98 (BOD Item 8, 9/26/2024) 

Renewal #3 – $3,303,162.22 (BOD Item 5, 11/8/2024) 
      (third of four additional one-year renewals 1/1/2025-12/31/2025) 

Amount of this Renewal #4:  $3,501,352.00 (fourth of four additional one-year renewals) 

Revised Total Contract Amount: $15,919,541.00  

Client/Fund Source: Montgomery County Materials Recycling Facility (MCMRF) IGA No. 
2-16-4-69. FY2026 Operating Budget. 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

MBE Participation: 30% MBE Goal; 41.95% Achieved. 

Remarks: This will allow MES to execute year four of four additional, one-year 
contract extensions and continue to provide general labor services and 
temporary scale traffic control for the Montgomery County DEP at the 
Montgomery County Transfer Station from January 2026 to December 
2026. Funding for this increase includes anticipated funding for the 
July 2025 Montgomery County Cost of Living requirements.  

 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

Change Order Approval 

PROCUREMENTS, CONTRACTS, PURCHASE ORDERS,  
AMENDMENTS, AND CHANGE ORDERS 

FOR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL 

 
September 25, 2025 

 

Item: 3  

Type: Construction over $200,000 

Group & Division: Environmental Operations 

MES Contract Number: 1-22-4-31-2 

Project Name: Brown Station Road Landfill Area C Infill Engineering 

Title/Description: Additional Construction Quality Assurance Services 

Original Procurement Method:  Client-Directed Sole Source 

Contractor: Stearns, Conrad, and Schmidt Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

Original Term: 6/30/2026 

Modified Term: 1/10/2022 – 6/30/2026 

Original Amount: $20,350,825.00 (BOD Item 5, 8/26/21) 

Modifications to Date: CO#1 – $3,013,257.00 (BOD Item 2, approved 1/16/23) 
CO#2 – $165,886.00  
CO#3 – $671,457.25 (BOD Item 3, approved 7/25/24) 
CO#4 – $159,136.02 
CO#5 – $160,203.60 (BOD Item 9, approved 12/9/24) 
CO#6 – $41,654.80 
CO#7 – $129,021.16 
CO#8 – $280,566.95 (BOD Item 11, approved 4/24/25) 
CO#9 – $72,885.00 
CO#10 – $67,229.44 (Issuance is anticipated by 9/19) 

Amount of this Change Order #11:   $159,360.00 

Revised Total Contract Amount: $25,271,482.22  

Client/Fund Source: Prince George’s County/PG Co/FY22 – FY26 Contract 
Management Services (IGA 2-21-4-53) 

 



BOD Proc Item - Form 3 Revised 2/23/24 
 

MBE Participation: Goal: 20%. Participation to date: 19.8%. 

Remarks: This change order serves to extend the construction quality 
assurance (CQA) services rendered by SCS Engineers for the 
construction of the Brown Station Road Sanitary Landfill Cell C-1 
liner system. Due to client-driven change order work and 
unexpected field conditions, the contracted services are required 
beyond the initial contracted term. This change order covers CQA 
from July 1, 2025, to November 10, 2025.  

 

 

 

 



1 
 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

THE MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE 
(Adopted July 1, 2023; Last updated September 25, 2025) 

 

ARTICLE I 

NAME AND PURPOSE 

Section 1.01.  The Board of Directors (“Board”) is the body established by statute 
to provide overall management of the Maryland Environmental Service 
(“Service”). 

Section 1.02.  The Service is an instrumentality of the State and a public 
corporation by that name, style, and title, and the exercise by the Service of the 
powers conferred by this subtitle is the performance of an essential governmental 
function of the State of Maryland. 

ARTICLE II 

POWERS 

Section 2.01.  The Board shall perform the duties and exercise the powers 
specified in the Maryland Environmental Service Act, Title 3, Subtitle 1 of the 
Natural Resources Article, Annotated Code of Maryland (“MES Act”), and other 
pertinent provisions of law. 

ARTICLE III 

MEMBERS 

Section 3.01.  Voting Members: The Board shall consist of the following voting 
members: 

A. The Secretary of Planning or the Secretary’s designee. 
B. Three members from the public sector in the State in positions 

responsible for environmental, water, wastewater, or solid waste 
management. 

C. One member from the private sector in the State with technical, financial, 
development, or legal experience related to environmental, water, 
wastewater, or solid waste management. 



2 
 

D. One member from the private sector in the State with financial 
experience related to environmental, water, wastewater, solid waste 
management. 

E. One member from the private sector in the State with experience or 
expertise in matters related to business ethics, preferably involving board 
of director ethics and conflicts of interest. 

Section 3.02. Nonvoting Members. The Board shall also consist of the following 
members, all of whom are considered nonvoting members: 

A. The Executive Director of the Service. 
B. One member of the Senate of Maryland, appointed by the President of 

the Senate. 
C. One member of the Maryland House of Delegates, appointed by the 

Speaker of the House.  

Section 3.03.  General Assembly Members.  

A. A Board member that is also a member of the Maryland General 
Assembly pursuant to Section 3.02(B) or 3.02(C) serves as an advisory 
member who may not vote.  

B. General Assembly Members may participate in Standing Committees in 
an advisory, nonvoting capacity.   

C. General Assembly Members may not play a role in supervising staff or 
consultants and shall refrain from debate, discussion, and consideration 
of any personnel matter that concerns an individual person or consultant.   

Section 3.04.  Term. The term of a Board member other than the Secretary of 
Planning, the member of the Senate of Maryland, the member of Maryland House 
of Delegates, and the Executive Director shall be four years, unless a different term 
is established by law. 

Section 3.05. End of Term.  At the end of a term, a Board member continues to 
serve until a successor is appointed and qualifies. 

Section 3.05. Resignation.  In accordance with Section 8-501 of the State 
Government Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, a Board member who fails to 
participate in at least 50% of the meetings of the Board during any consecutive 12-
month period shall be considered to have resigned. 



3 
 

Section 3.06. Prohibited Members. Except for the Executive Director, an 
employee of the Service may not serve on the Board. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

OFFICERS AND STAFF OF THE BOARD 

Section 4.01.  Elected Officers.  At the Organizational Meeting (as defined in 
Section 5.01), and at other times, when necessary, the Board shall select from 
among its members three Elected Officers of the Service:  a Chair of the Board 
(“Chair”), a Secretary (“Secretary”), and a Treasurer (“Treasurer”).  Neither the 
Secretary of Planning nor the Executive Director may serve as an Elected Officer.   

A. The Elected Officers shall serve until the next Organizational Meeting, or 
until a successor is elected by the Board. 

B. An Elected Officer may be removed from their position by the affirmative 
vote of at least five members. 

C. The Board shall fill any vacancy in an office by the affirmative vote of at 
least five members. 

Section 4.02.  Chair.   

A. The Chair is authorized to represent the Board before all public bodies, to 
preside at the meetings of the Board, to sign on behalf of the Board papers 
authorized by the Board or as required by law, to appoint work groups of the 
Board to study specific matters of interest, and to perform such other duties 
as the MES Act, these Bylaws, or the Board may assign. 

B. If the Chair notifies the Board that they will not be present for a scheduled or 
special meeting of the Board, or the Chair is unexpectedly absent or under a 
disability, the Secretary shall preside at the meeting, and shall have the 
powers and authority of the Chair for each meeting at which the Secretary 
presides. 

Section 4.03.  Secretary. 

A. The Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Board and be 
custodian of all books, documents, and papers filed with the Service and of 
the minute book or journal of the Service and its official seal and shall 
perform such other duties as set forth in the MES Act, these Bylaws, or as 
directed by the Board. 



4 
 

B. With the approval of the Board, the Secretary may authorize an employee of 
the Service to serve as Deputy Secretary and to perform the functions of the 
Secretary, subject to any restrictions and conditions that the Secretary 
establishes. 

C. The Secretary shall be the official records custodian of the Service, as that 
term is defined in the Maryland Public Information Act. 

Section 4.04.  Treasurer. 

A. The Treasurer shall maintain a detailed and accurate accounting system for 
all financial transactions of the Service and shall perform such other duties 
as set forth in the MES Act, these Bylaws, or as directed by the Board. 

B. With the approval of the Board, the Treasurer may authorize an employee of 
the Service to serve as Deputy Treasurer and to disburse money for the 
purposes of the Service as provided by law, and subject to restrictions and 
other conditions that the Treasurer establishes. 

C. The Treasurer and Deputy Treasurer shall be covered by a surety bond in 
accordance with the provisions of law concerning the State Employees 
Surety Bond Committee. 

Section 4.05.  Board Clerk. 

A. The Board Clerk shall perform their duties under the general supervision of 
the Secretary.  The Board Clerk shall prepare and circulate, in a timely 
manner, the schedule of meetings, meeting agendas, draft minutes, 
resolutions, correspondence, and other records and documents of the Board 
and any committees of the Board.  The Board Clerk shall coordinate with the 
staff of the Service to make publicly available on the Service’s website, in 
advance of each Board or committee meeting, any meeting agendas, 
summary of any finalized documents, written testimony from the public, and 
other materials that the Board will vote on.  The Board Clerk shall also 
coordinate with the staff of the Service the posting on the Service’s website 
of approved meeting minutes and shall assist the Board in implementing its 
other obligations under the Open Meetings Act.  Unless otherwise directed 
by the Board, the Board Clerk shall attend all meetings of the Board and its 
committees.  The Board Clerk shall prepare the annual attendance report for 
submittal to the Governor. 

B. The Executive Director shall submit to the Board, for its approval, the name 
and qualifications of an employee of the Service to serve as Board Clerk of 



5 
 

the Board. The Board Clerk shall serve until the next Organizational 
Meeting, or until a successor is approved by the Board. 

C. If the Board Clerk notifies the Executive Director that they will not be 
present for a scheduled meeting of the Board or one of its committees, or the 
Clerk is unexpectedly absent or under a disability, the Executive Director 
shall designate another employee of the Service to temporarily fulfill the 
duties of the Board Clerk. 

Section 4.06.  Counsel.  The Attorney General of Maryland is the legal advisor for 
the Service and the Board.  The individual designated by the Attorney General to 
be counsel to the Service shall provide the legal aid, advice and counsel required 
by the Board. 

Section 4.07.  Other Staff.  The Executive Director shall assign to the Board such 
other staff of the Service as the Board may require in carrying out its duties and 
responsibilities. 

ARTICLE V 

MEETINGS 

Section 5.01.  Regular Meetings.   

A. The Board shall hold regular monthly meetings.   
 

B. Organizational Meeting. The first regular meeting of each State fiscal year 
shall be designated as the Organizational Meeting, at which time the Elected 
Officers of the Board shall be elected, the members of the Standing 
Committees shall be confirmed, the schedule of regular meetings shall be 
approved, the Board Clerk shall be confirmed, and the Board shall take any 
other actions required by these Bylaws.  Except in an emergency, as 
determined by the Chair, the date of the Organizational Meeting and any 
regular meeting may be changed only by an affirmative vote of the Board.  
For any meeting that must be rescheduled due to an emergency, as 
determined by the Chair, the Chair shall designate a new date for the 
meeting. 

Section 5.02.  Special Meetings.  The Board may hold special meetings upon the 
call of the Chair.  The Chair may call a special meeting at the Chair’s initiative, or 
in response to a written request of four (4) voting members of the Board. The 
written request shall be submitted to the Board Clerk, with a copy to the Chair and 



6 
 

to the Executive Director.  Five business days’ notice of any special meeting shall 
be given to all Board members, except when the Chair determines that special 
circumstances warrant shorter notice. 

Section 5.03.  Conduct of Board Meetings. 

A. Five members present at a meeting constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business of the Board. The Executive Director and other non-voting 
members are included as members for purposes of making a quorum.  If the 
Secretary of Planning and the Secretary’s designee both attend a meeting, 
only one is considered present for quorum purposes.  

B. Meetings of the Board, including meetings of any Board committees, shall 
be held at the headquarters of the Service, or at any other location approved 
by the Chair of the Board, or the Chair of the Committee, as the case may 
be.  A member may participate in any meeting of the Board or Committee by 
utilizing electronic technology, such as tele-conferencing or video-
conferencing. A Board member must utilize technology that is compatible 
with the technology of the Service and that allows the member to effectively 
participate in the meeting. 

C. The affirmative vote of at least five voting members is necessary for any 
action taken by the Board.  If the Secretary of Planning and the Secretary’s 
designee both attend a meeting, only one vote may be cast between them for 
any specific action.  Voting shall be by voice vote unless otherwise directed 
by the Chair.  In all cases where a vote is taken, the yeas, nays and 
abstentions shall be separately recorded, except for a unanimous vote, which 
may be recorded as such. 

D. Proxy voting shall not be permitted.  A Board member must be present at a 
meeting to cast a vote. 

E. Board meetings, including meetings of any Board Committees, shall be 
conducted in accordance with the Maryland Open Meetings Act, these 
Bylaws, and the latest revised version of Robert’s Rules of Order, as 
modified by the Board. 

F. The portion of any Board meeting or committee meeting that is open to the 
public shall be livestreamed through the Service’s website. 

G. At least four (4) business days prior to a Board or committee meeting the 
Board Clerk shall circulate the proposed meeting agenda, draft meeting 
minutes, draft resolutions, proposed bylaw amendments, correspondence, 
and other records and documents which may be presented to the Board or 



7 
 

committee for its consideration. The Board Clerk shall also coordinate with 
the staff of the Service to make publicly available on the Service’s website, 
at least 48 hours in advance of each Board or committee meeting, any 
meeting agendas, summary of any finalized documents, written testimony 
from the public, and any other materials that the Board or Committee may 
vote on at the meeting.  In the event the Board Clerk, due to an emergency, a 
natural disaster, or some other unanticipated situation, is not able to circulate 
the materials to the Board or post the material on the Service’s website by 
the deadlines specified herein, then the Board Clerk shall fulfill these duties 
as soon as practicable. 

Section 5.04. Public Comment.  Each open meeting of the Board may allow 
reasonable time for public comment. The Board will utilize a Board approved 
protocol for advance sign up by persons who wish to comment at an open 
meeting, limits on time for an individual’s comments, and overall limits on the 
time for all public comments.  The Chair may, in the Chair’s sole discretion, 
deny an individual an opportunity to address the Board if the Chair determines 
the individual intends to address the Board on a matter that is unrelated to the 
Service’s mission or activities.  The Chair may also, in the Chair’s sole 
discretion, recognize an individual for comment at any time during a Board 
meeting. 

Section 5.05.  Meeting Minutes.  The Board Clerk shall prepare the minutes of 
each Board and committee meeting.  The Board Clerk shall distribute the draft 
minutes in advance of the next meeting of the Board or committee, unless the 
next meeting is an unscheduled emergency meeting, and it is impracticable for 
the Board Clerk to distribute the draft minutes prior to such meeting. The Board 
shall affirmatively approve the minutes of each meeting with such changes as 
may be requested by the Board.  Approved minutes shall be signed by the Chair 
and the Secretary for Board meetings, and by the committee chair for 
committee meetings.  The Board Clerk, under the direction of the Secretary, 
shall retain the approved signed minutes as required by law. 

ARTICLE VI 

COMMITTEES 

Section 6.01.  Standing Committees of the Board.  The Standing Committees 
of the Board are the Committee on Audits and the Committee on Human 
Resources. 



8 
 

A. At the annual Organizational Meeting the Chair shall present to the Board a 
proposed list of Board members to serve on the Standing Committees, and a 
proposed Committee Chair for each Standing Committee.  The Board, by 
affirmative vote, may approve the proposed list as submitted, or may modify 
the proposed list by adding or deleting members, or designating other 
members to serve as Standing Committee chairs. 

B. Each Standing Committee shall have no less than three (3) voting members.  
The Board Chair shall be an ex officio voting member of each Standing 
Committee but may not serve as chair of any Standing Committee.   

C. A member of a Standing Committee shall serve until the next Organizational 
Meeting, or until a successor is selected by the Board. 

D. The Board may, by affirmative vote, remove a member from any Standing 
Committee at any time. 

E. In case of vacancy on a Standing Committee, the Board Chair shall appoint 
another eligible Board member to serve the remainder of the term. 

F. The Executive Director and a General Assembly Member may serve as a 
non-voting member of any Standing Committee. 

G. The Executive Director shall direct appropriate staff of the Service to assist 
the Standing Committees in fulfilling their duties. 

Section 6.02.  Committee on Audit.  The Committee on Audit shall render advice 
and assistance to the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities for overseeing 
the adequacy of and compliance with the internal controls of the Service. 

A. The Committee shall assist the Service in reviewing proposals from the 
independent external auditor.  Once the Service has selected an external 
auditor the Committee shall review the scope of each examination to be 
conducted and the services to be provided.  The Committee shall review the 
findings and reports prepared by the independent external auditor and 
provide the Board with appropriate reports. 

B. The Committee shall review legislative audits of the Service and the 
Service’s response thereto and provide the Board with appropriate reports. 

C. The Committee shall review and recommend to the Board the scope of the 
internal audit function.  The Committee shall review the charter of the 
Service’s Internal Auditor, their annual plan of work, reports and 
administrative actions taken regarding their recommendations, and their 
annual report, if any, of significant audit items, and shall provide the Board 
with appropriate reports on the activities of that office.  



9 
 

D. The Committee shall undertake other duties as directed by the Board. 

Section 6.03.  Committee on Human Resources. 

A. The Committee on Human Resources shall periodically review the Service’s 
human resources regulations and policies, the Service’s employee 
compensation structure, the benefits available to the Service’s employees. 
The Committee may also review the Service’s recruitment and retention 
activities as it deems necessary. 

B. The Committee shall manage the process of the Executive Director’s annual 
evaluation, which shall include discussing the evaluation process with the 
Executive Director, seeking input on the Executive Director’s performance 
from Board members and others, leading a confidential discussion of the 
Executive Director’s performance with all other Board members, and 
transmitting the results of the performance evaluation to the Executive 
Director. 

C. In accordance with the Board’s Conflicts of Interest Policy, the Committee 
shall review the annual financial disclosure statements filed by Board 
members. 

D. The Committee shall undertake other duties as directed by the Board. 

Section 6.04.  Other Committees.  The Board may create ad hoc committees.  The 
members of an ad hoc committee shall be appointed by the Chair, who shall also 
designate the chair of the ad hoc committee.  The Chair may not serve as the chair 
of an ad hoc committee.  An ad hoc committee shall not continue beyond a period 
of one year past its creation unless the Board acts to extend the ad hoc committee’s 
existence. 

Section 6.05. Committee Meetings. Committee meetings shall be scheduled by 
the chair of each committee.  Each Standing Committee shall meet at least two 
times per year but may meet more frequently as determined by each Committee 
Chair. 

A. Notice of each committee meeting shall be given in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act and these Bylaws.  Agendas and other materials to be 
considered by a committee shall be provided in advance as required by the 
Open Meetings Act and these Bylaws. 

B. Committee meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Open 
Meetings Act and these Bylaws. Committee members may participate in a 



10 
 

committee meeting in the same manner is permitted for Board members 
under Section 5.03.B of these Bylaws. 

C. A majority of the voting members of each committee shall constitute a 
quorum for the conduct of committee business.  The affirmative vote of a 
majority of voting members of a committee is necessary for any action taken 
by the committee.  If the Secretary of Planning and Secretary’s designee 
both attend a committee meeting, only one vote may be cast between them 
for any specific action.  Voting shall be by voice vote unless otherwise 
directed by the committee chair.  In all cases where a vote is taken, the yeas, 
nays and abstentions shall be separately recorded, except for a unanimous 
vote, which may be recorded as such. 

D. The Board Clerk shall prepare minutes of each committee meeting in 
accordance with Section 5.05 of these Bylaws. 
 

ARTICLE VII 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS 

Section 7.01.  Those Board members not already holding a public office of profit 
shall receive from the Service per diem compensation as established by the Board.  
If the Board modifies the per diem compensation the new per diem compensation 
shall be paid only to those Board members whose term of office begins after the 
effective date of the change.  The per diem compensation in effect as of the date 
these Bylaws are adopted shall continue until modified by the Board. 

Section 7.02.  Board members may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the 
performance of their duties to MES as permitted by the Service’s Expense 
Reimbursement Policy and pursuant to the Standard State Travel Regulations.  A 
Board member seeking reimbursement of expenses shall, within thirty days after 
incurring the expense, submit to an employee designated by the Deputy Treasurer, 
itemized receipts and appropriate mileage logs documenting the expenses. 

ARTICLE VIII 

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

Section 8.01.  These Bylaws may be amended by an affirmative vote of the Board 
at any regular monthly meeting of the Board.  The Board may not act on any 
proposed amendment unless the written text of the amendment is sent to each 
Board member, the Board Clerk, and the Counsel at least 21 days prior to the date 



11 
 

on which the Board is to consider the amendment.  Proposed amendments may be 
distributed by the Board Clerk or by the Board member proposing the amendment.  
The Board Clerk shall make the proposed amendment publicly available as 
provided in Section 5.03 of these Bylaws. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Maryland Environmental Service on May 
25, 2023, to be effective July 1, 2023. 

Revised: Revised June 27, 2024, to be effective July 1, 2024. 

Revised: September 25, 2025. 



Maryland Environmental Service Board of Directors 
Public Comment Procedures  

1. Compliance Overview 

MES Board of Directors meetings comply with the Maryland Open Meetings Act, which 
requires: 

• Advance public notice of meetings, including agendas and access details. 
• Meetings to be reasonably accessible to the public in person and virtually. 
• Meeting minutes or recordings to be promptly prepared and made publicly available. 

2. Public Comment Period 

• At the discretion of the Chair, a 30-minute public comment period may be included in the 
agenda of each open meeting and conducted when necessary. 

• Public comments will follow the Board’s discussion of scheduled topics. 
• The Chair of the Board or other designated member will call upon registered speakers in 

order or read submitted comments. 

3. Speaker Participation Guidelines 

• Time Limit: Each speaker may be allotted up to 3 minutes. 
• Topic Relevance: Comments must pertain to MES’s mission, activities, or agenda topics. 
• Prohibited Topics: Personal employment matters, health, lifestyle, or beliefs of 

individuals are not permitted. 
• Conduct: Speakers must be respectful, coherent, and orderly. Disruptive behavior will 

result in removal. 
• Recording: Public comments will be recorded, summarized in the minutes, and made 

available to the public after the meeting. 

4. In-Person Attendance Procedures 

• Registration Requirements:   
o Registration is required at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 



o Registrants must submit their name, contact information, and the topic/agenda 
item they intend to address. 

• Arrival: Check-in upon arrival and arrive no later than 10 minutes before the meeting 
starts. No late entries. 

• Capacity: Maximum of 8 public attendees allowed in the meeting room before utilizing 
additional designated space. 

• Group Representation: No more than 3 representatives per group or coalition are 
permitted in the meeting if space is limited. 

• Overflow: Additional affiliated attendees may view the meeting remotely from an 
overflow space. 

5. Written Comment Procedures 

• The written comments can be mailed to MES Headquarters at 259 Najoles Road, 
Millersville MD 21108 to the attention of the Board Clerk. 

• Written comments may be submitted online via an online portal on the MES Website. 
• Written comments may be addressed and read by the Chair of the Board or other 

designated Board member. 

6. Public Notification & Access Requirements 

• Regularly scheduled meeting notices will be posted on the MES website. 
• Notice of cancellations, urgent, or rescheduled meetings will be disseminated via website, 

email to registered attendees, and social media. 
• Meeting agendas will be made publicly available at least 24 hours before each meeting. 

7. Meeting Records 

• Public comments will be included in official meeting records 
• These records will be made publicly accessible after the meeting. 


	Agenda - September 2025
	Board of Directors Meeting
	 Tri-Con Technical Sessions, Competition & Awards  Jen Wijetunga
	 St. Mary’s County Stormwater Project  Melissa Slatnick
	 Midshore Regional Recycling Program  Tim Ford
	 MPA Innovative Reuse & Beneficial Use of Dredged   Kenna Oseroff
	Material Program

	Call to Order Shelley Heller
	Inspire Awards Managing Directors
	Approval of Minutes – August 21, 2025 Shelley Heller
	Executive Director’s Report Charles Glass
	2025 Employee Engagement Survey Tasks Jeff Tosi
	FY28-32 Strategic Plan Workplan Jeff Tosi
	FY25 BEST Results Sandy Hertz
	New Business Report Managing Directors
	Financial Report Hament Patel


	25-09-1R Day after Thanksgiving as Holiday
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE
	RESOLUTION
	A RESOLUTION
	R  E  C  I  T  A  L  S
	ADOPTED, this 25th day of September 2025.
	SEAL                         MARYLAND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE

	Procurement Item 2025-09-01 - CO GBA RFP increase
	Procurement Item 2025-09-02 -  MoCo Colossal CO Mont. Co. MRF
	Procurement Item 2025-09-03 - Brown Station Cell C-1
	Board Bylaws - Revised 8-21-25 - Clean Copy
	Board meeting Public Comment Procedures  - for Board 8-21-25
	Maryland Environmental Service Board of Directors Public Comment Procedures
	1. Compliance Overview
	2. Public Comment Period
	3. Speaker Participation Guidelines
	4. In-Person Attendance Procedures
	6. Public Notification & Access Requirements
	7. Meeting Records



